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3 

THE COURT Can you verlfy that you've compIled wlth 

the vlctun's rlghts act? 

MR CAMPBELL Yes, Your Honor 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

THE COURT Mr Johnson, you represent Mr Gllstrap? 

MR JOHNSON Yes, slr, Your Honor 

THE COURT Have you explalned to hlm the cruclal 

7 elements that the State would have to prove ln order to 

8 convlct hlm of these crlmes, the maxlmum punlshment that 

9 he faces on each one, and all of hlS Constltutlonal 

10 r~ghts? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

MR JOHNSON 

THE COURT 

MR JOHNSON 

THE COURT 

15 please 

I have, Your Honor 

Does he understand all that? 

I belleve he does, Your Honor 

Mr Gllstrap, ralse your rlght hand, 

16 RICKY GILSTRAP 

17 Havlng been flrst duly sworn, testlfled as follows 

18 THE COURT All rlght You can put your hand down 

19 Wlthln the last 24 hours have you taken any medlcatlon, 

20 drugs or alcohol? 

21 

22 

MR GILSTRAP 

THE COURT 

No, Slr 

Mr Gllstrap, you are charged wlth 

23 forgery WhlCh carrles up to flve years ln prlson, and 

24 you're also charged wlth one count of forgery, where no 

25 dollar amount lS lnvolved, WhlCh carrles up to three 

3 



4 

1 

2 

3 

years ln prlson 

MR GILSTRAP 

THE COURT 

4 docket? 

5 

6 

MR CAMPBELL 

MR JOHNSON 

Do you understand that? 

Yes, Slr 

WhlCh lS the one that was on the trlal 

Both were, Your Honor 

One was today and one was tomorrow 

7 belleve, that's the way lt was, George? 

8 MR CAMPBELL Yes I belleve, Your Honor, that 

9 both of these are for forgery less than $5,000 on the 

10 unless there's an error on the sentenclng sheet 

11 THE COURT Well, the sentenclng sheet on one says 

12 no dollar amount 

13 MR CAMPBELL Then that lS my error, Your Honor 

14 The lndlctments are both for forgery less than $5,000 

15 MR JOHNSON That's actually the way we understood 

16 lt, Judge 

THE COURT Okay And dld you -- one of them --17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

thlS 18 also a thlrd or subsequent property offense? 

MR CAMPBELL Yes, Slr, Your Honor 

THE COURT Okay 

MR JOHNSON Walt a mlnute 

THE COURT Thank you 

THE CLERK You1re welcome 

THE COURT ThlS lS the one that's not on the 

docket? 

4 

I 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

MR CAMPBELL 

MR JOHNSON 

THE COURT 

Yes, Sl.r 

Yes, Sl.r 

Gotcha Okay I So l.t appears that he 

has two counts of forgery, both of WhlCh are thlrd or 

subsequent property offenses and carry up to 10 years ln 

prlson? 

MR JOHNSON Judge, that seems to be the case, but 

to be honest wlth you that's not somethlng I dlscussed 

wlth my cllent 

5 

10 THE COURT Okay Well, you can dlSCUSS l.t wlth hlm 

11 now 

12 MR JOHNSON Okay 

13 THE COURT Okay He also has a posseSSlon of crack 

14 cocalne WhlCh carrles up to three years and a flne of up 

15 to $5,000 All rlght So we'll take a break for you to 

16 dlSCUSS the sentenclng -- the sentence range on the two 

17 forgerles 

MR JOHNSON Okay We don't need too long, Judge 

We'll Just be rlght here 

THE COURT Okay 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

(A dlScusslon was held off the record ) 

MR JOHNSON Judge, I belleve we're prepared to go 

23 forward at thlS tlme 

24 THE COURT All rlght Mr Gllstrap, you -- let's 

25 go back to the dlSCUSSlon about what these crlmes carry 

5 



6 
6 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

by way of sentenclng And you're charged wlth two counts 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

of forgery and they each carry up to 10 years 1n prlson 

Do you understand that? 

MR GILSTRAP Yes, Slr 

THE COURT You're charged, as I d1scussed w1th you 

a few moments ago, w1th one count of possess1on of crack, 

Wh1Ch carr1es up to three years 1n pr1son and a flne of 

up to $5,000? 

MR GILSTRAP Yes, Slr 

THE COURT If you're ever conv1cted of a drug 

offense agaln then the penalty you face w1ll be enhanced 

as a result of your plea on th1S drug charge, and you 

wlll lose your drlver's llcense today 

that? 

MR GILSTRAP Yes, Slr 

Do you understand 

THE COURT When you plead gUllty you glve up very 

17 1mportant Const1tut1onal rlghts 1ncludlng your r1ght to a 

18 trlal by Jury You also have the r1ght to rema1n sllent, 

19 the rlght aga1nst self-1ncr1m1natlon You're ent1tled to 

20 the presumpt10n of lnnocence, and that means that 1f you 

21 were to stand tr1al on these charges then you would be 

22 presumed 1nnocent And ln order to conv1ct you the State 

23 would have to prove you gUllty beyond a reasonable doubt 

24 And at tr1al you would have the r1ght to confront 

25 w1tnesses called by the State to testlfy aga1nst you Do 



7 
7 

1 you understand all those rlghts? 

2 MR GILSTRAP Yes, Slr 

3 THE COURT Do you wlsh to glve up all those rlghts 

4 and plead gUllty? 

5 MR GILSTRAP Yes, Slr 

6 THE COURT Are you gUllty? 

7 MR GILSTRAP Yes, Slr 
I 

8 THE COURT Are you completely satlsfled wlth your 

9 attorney? 

10 MR GILSTRAP I am, Your Honor 

11 THE COURT Has he done everythlng ln th1S case that 
, 

12 you feel he could have done or should have done? 

13 MR GILSTRAP I feel he has 

14 THE COURT Has he done anyth1ng ln thlS case that 

15 you feel he should not have done? 

16 MR GILSTRAP No, Slr 

17 THE COURT NOW, you real1ze these two forgery cases 

1 

18 are on the docket to be trled th1S week? 

19 MR GILSTRAP Yes, Slr 

20 THE COURT Are you satlsfled that lf you had 

21 declded to exerClse your rlght 'to a trlal by Jury that 

22 your attorney 1S sufflclently prepared to defend you ln 

23 the trlal of the case? 

24 MR GILSTRAP Yes, Slr 

25 THE COURT Any recommendatlon? 
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1 MR CAMPBELL None from the State, Your Honor 

2 THE COURT Has anybody promlsed you anythlng, or 

3 held out any hope of reward ln order to get you to plead 

4 gUllty? 

5 

6 

MR GILSTRAP No, Slr 

THE COURT Has anybody threatened, or used force, 

8 

7 or pressure, or lntlmldatlon ln order to get you to plead 

8 gUllty? 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR GILSTRAP No, Slr 

THE COURT Are you the one who made the declslon 

that you would plead gUllty here today? 

MR GILSTRAP I am, Your Honor 

THE COURT 

are gUllty? 

And are you pleadlng gUllty because you 

MR GILSTRAP Yes, Slr 

THE COURT All rlght Tell me the facts 

MR CAMPBELL May lt please the Court, Your Honor? 

On or about June 30, 2008, ln Greenvllle County, the 

defendant knowlngly presented a forged lnstrument of 

wrltlng, a check, number 1005, for $564 22 to Parker Road 

Drugs In Greenvllle County The State obtalned 

flngerprlnt eVldence and vldeo survelllance of the 

defendant at thlS locatlon 

Then on or about July the 16th, 2008, ln Greenvllle 

County, the defendant knowlngly presented another forged 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

9 

lnstrument of wrltlng, check number 1001, to Walmart for 

$468 76, whlch was also -- the defendant was apprehended 

by loss prevent lon, and the vldeo survelllance lmpllcated 

hlm ln the crlme The defendant further freely and 

voluntarlly confessed to these two forgerles and 

lmpllcated other defendants ln the forgery rlng ln WhlCh 

he was partlclpatlng 

Then on or about Aprll 5, 2008, ln Greenvllle County 

the State alleges that the defendant was found knowlngly 

ln possesslon of less than one gram of crack cocalne 

pursuant to a lawful search of hlS person after pollce 

responded to a dlsturbance He does have a prlor record 

and there lS no recommendatlon 

THE COURT Mr Gllstrap, lS there anythlng that the 

15 S011cltor sald about what you dld on these three 

16 occaSlons that's not true? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR GILSTRAP No, Slr 

THE COURT It's all true? 

MR GILSTRAP It's all true 

THE COURT What's hlS prlor record? 

MR CAMPBELL 1986, burglary flrst, 1989 -- 1991, 

burglary second, 1992, drlvlng under suspenSlon, 1995 

drlvlng under suspenSlon, 1996, fallure to stop for a 

blue Ilght, two counts of petty larceny ln 1997, fraud 

check ln 1999, slrnple assault and battery ln 2003, 2005, 

9 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

manufacturlng or possesslon of drugs, arson second 

degree 

MR GILSTRAP 

MR JOHNSON 

No, Slr 

Hold on The drugs? 

5 MR GILSTRAP Arson or the drugs, elther one 

10 

6 MR CAMPBELL And then apart from the arson, on May 

7 15 -- 17 of 2006, the defendant plead gUllty to a federal 

8 charge -- two federal charges of counterfeltlng 

9 MR JOHNSON Judge? 

10 THE COURT Yes, Slr 

11 MR JOHNSON Just for the record, my cllent says 

12 he's actually famlllar wlth those -- that arson and that 

13 drug convlctlon, that he had actually been trYlng to get 

14 them removed Just for the purposes of the record he 

15 would llke me to make you aware of that, that those 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

charges aren't hlS 

about them, Judge 

He says he doesn't know anythlng 

THE COURT I won't conSlder them 

MR JOHNSON Thank you, Your Honor 

THE COURT All rlght Let me hear -- let me hear 

the record agaln 

MR CAMPBELL 1986, burglary flrst, 1991, burglary 

second, 1992, drlvlng under suspenslon, 1995, drlvlng 

under suspenslon, 1996, fallure to stop for a blue Ilght, 

1997, two counts of petty larceny, 1999, fraud check, 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2003, slmple assault and battery, 2006, two federal 

counts of counterfe1t1ng currency 

THE COURT 2006? 

11 

MR CAMPBELL Yes, Your Honor He plead gU1lty on 

May 17, 2006, recelved elght months prlson and three 

years probatlon 

MR JOHNSON Thank you, Your Honor My cl1ent 1S 

41 years old He does have a h1gh school educatlon In 

add1t1on he tells me he's stud1ed heat1ng and a1r at 

Maylon Commun1ty College 1n North Carol1na The last 

I t1me he was out -- w'ell, before I met h1m the f1rst t1me 

he had worked at Budget Tree Serv1ce 

worked ma1ntenance for a tra1ler park 

h1story of work 

Before then he 

So he does have a 

Your Honor, we're here today plead1ng off the tra11 

docket essent1ally because my cllent never wanted to go 

tr1al he Just wanted a better plea deal, 1f you may The 

plea that was on the table when we had the forger1es was 

a f1ve year sentence And as he understood 1t at the 

t1me that was gOlng to be the max So he was slmply 

trY1ng to hold1ng out hope Me and George Campbell 

d1scussed 1t Mr Campbell of course deC1ded that the 

of course, you know, he has to do hls Job as well, and he 

24 understood that But anyway he was hoplng to get a 

25 better plea offer 

1 1 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

12 

In any case, Judge, I spoke wlth Mr Campbell about 

thlS last week, and I gave hlm no lmpreSSlon that we were 

ever lntendlng to try thlS case 

that wlth hlm 

And you can conflrm 

In talklng wlth Mr Gllstrap about the case, he had 

thlS possesslon of crack charge and we declded also there 

was no use ln prolonglng that as well, Judge So he 

wants to take care of that As far as the cases are 

concerned, Judge, he wanted me to -- to relterate that he 

dld cooperate We understand he dld wrong, but he would 

llke for the Court to know that when he was caught and 

when the pollce came to hlm, he dld cooperate and he gave 

them other names, and he trled to do the best he could ln 

order to make thlngs rlght, even though he understands 

that he has to pay for what he dld here today 

In any case, Your Honor, he understands that you 

probably wouldn't thlnk he's a good candldate for 

probatlon We're of course asklng for ]all tlme (SlC) 

We ask you to conslder wrapplng everythlng up Maybe 

you'd conslder three or more years, three years, or lf 

you want to do flve we understand, Judge, as well But 

he really would llke for you to conslder dOlng three 

years He would of course have no tlme served from thlS 

pOlnt forward So -- well, Judge he says he's been ln 

]all for about two months Actually he was locked up on 
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1 the crack charge from 4/5 to 5/3, and then lnltlally two 

2 weeks and now two weeks aga~n So actually I apolog~ze, 

3 Judge He would l~ke cred~t for two months, Judge 

4 THE COURT Be glad to g~ve hlm cred~t for two 

5 months 

6 MR JOHNSON In that case, Judge, we're ask~ng for 

7 the mercy of the Court We'd ask you to take those 

8 th~ngs ~nto cons~derat~on 

9 THE COURT Anyth~ng further? 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR JOHNSON Noth~ng further from the defense, Your 

Honor 

THE COURT All r~ght The sentence on both of the 

forger~es ~s seven years Both -- and those are 

concurrent, w~th cred~t for t~me served The sentence on 

the drug charge 1S three years and a $2,000 f~ne The 

t~me ~s suspended to one year The f~ne 1S suspended to 

$1,000 W~th probat~on for three years And the case 

w~ll term~nate upon payment of all funds Another 

cond~t~on of probat~on 1S he pay $500 to the publ~c 

defender fund 

MR JOHNSON Thank you, Your Honor 

MR CAMPBELL Thank you, Your Honor 

THE COURT The one year lS concurrent 

MR JOHNSON Thank you, Your Honor 

- - -END OF TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD-

13 
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I, the unders1gned Mary E D1G1rolamo, Off1c1al 

14 

3 Court Reporter for the Th1rteenth Jud1c1al C1rcu1t of the 
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5 forego1ng lS a true, accurate and complete Transcr1pt of 
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23 

24 
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IV 
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(t.) 
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WIth respect to this convIction, whIch you filed? __________ _ 

18 If you answered Ayes@ to one or more parts of (17), hst 

(a) the name and address of each attorney who represented you 

B",~)\ -So,,",-Y\,soy\ - ~1'~ ... {y\,v~t\~ C~ \ i>u,\,\\~ DeS-e.-pJu 
.3 Q S ~A.Sf \\)\:H'~h & t 1 Gn..-t.V\ \J\. 'v'-l., S ,. 1,\l-,D \ 

11 

111 

(b) the proceedmgs at whIch each such attorney represented you 

A 1'I'fl~1r" (\'\ (.rtf An J ~ \ t. ~ 

11l 
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I I) filing thl1> .lppllL Itum 

-r c .. :-.,t -\\xJ: ;L te, \"e;-" ..I"\.\t'I)C.eA c.eo
., c.. t ~ .--}1-'{eDY" c, c.d ().:>t 3 d 0'" @a~.J.h.c 

TheA iMc eAb-.l't.&Mt'J\t ();\, lh .. c.r-:t'<" 10 .. '4.}Jbd.rv."),, (,)'I.A -\k.. ONJ\,btd. l 
()reo ~'o d\ o-s '0,.." .. 0 h<z \c.n"os:e-d, 

20 Are you now under sentence from .my other cou11 thdt you have not challenged? 

>'\Q 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 
) 

RevIsed 312003 

VERIFICATION 

I, , bemg duly sworn 
upon my h, depose and say that I have subscnbed toi the foregomg dpphcatJOn, that I know the 
contents thereof, that It mcludes every ground known to me for vacatmg, settmg aSIde or 
correctmg the convIctIOn and sentence attacked In thIS applIcatIon, and that the matters and 
allegatIons therem set forth are true I 

J~TT'K':d before me thIS,-£-

My CommissIon ExpIres _....;:3"~/2=z-~L='2_t)_V2 ___ _ 7 7 

6 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 

RICky D GIlstrap, SCDC# 198939 
ApplIcant, 

vs 

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 
Respondent 

) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
) C A No 2010-CP-23- 612 
) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

AMENDMENTS TO 
POST CONVICTION 
RELIEF APPLICATIONS 

------------------------,) 
The apphcant hereby amends answers to number 9 and number 10 6.!ff"!S/ 

ApplIcatIOn for Post-ConvlctlOn RelIef to state the followmg c_\ ~ ~) 
..... _J (, (~ 

'­,..-
-:2: 

9 
- --

State concisely the grounds on which you base your allegatlOn that y6U;~~ bel.® 
held In custody unlawfully -i a 

(A) The Apphcant was demed effective assIstance of counsel m VIolation of 

the SIxth Amendment to the United States ConstItutIOn and ArtIcle I, SectIOn 

14 of The South Carolma ConstitutIOn 

10 State concisely and m order the facts which support each of the grounds set out m 
(9) 

(a) The applIcant was provided WIth deficient representatlOn by hiS attorney, 

m that the conduct of hIS attorney was objectIvely unreasonable under the 

circumstances Stnckland vs Washmgton. 466 US 668 (1984) The 

outcome of the applIcant's proceedmg was preJudIced, and It IS reasonably 

probable that the outcome would have been different had counsel's 

performance not been deficIent Stnckland. 466 U S at 694 Defense counsel 

was meffectlve based on one or more of the followmg 

1 My defense attorney faIled to conscIentIOusly dIscharge hIS 
professlOnal responslbIhties whIle he was handlmg my case 



2 My defense attorney faIled to effectIvely challenge the arrest and 
seIzure of the ApplIcant 

I 

3 My defense attorney faIled to act as my dIlIgent, conscIentIOUs 
advocate 

4 My defense attorney faIled to gIve me hIS complete loyalty 

5 My defense attorney dId not have my best mterest m mmd whIle he 
was supposed to be mvestigatmg and preparmg my case 

6 My defense attorney faIled to serve my cause m good faIth 

7 My defense attorney neglected the necessary mvestIgatIOns and the 
preparatIon of my case 

8 My defense attorney dId not do the necessary factual mvestigatIOns on 
my behalf 

9 My defense attorney dId not do the necessary legal research 

10 My defense attorney dId not conscIentIously gather any mformatIOn 
to protect my rIghts 

11 My defense attor~ey dId not try to have my case settled m a manor 
that would have been to my best advantage 

12 My defense attorney dId not adVIse me of all my nghts or take any of 
the actIOns that were necessary to protect or preserve them knowmg 
that I was not versed m the law 

13 My defense attorney, knowmg I was Ilhterate m the law, never 
properly ascertamed whether or t;lot I actually understood or 
comprehended all of the Issues that were mvolved m my case 

14 My defense attorney never properly consulted Wlth me or kept me 
mformed WIth what was gomg on as far as my case was concerned 

15 My defense attorney never explamed to me or dIscussed WIth me any 
of the elements of the CrIme charged 

16 My defense attorney never made any attempt to ascertam whether or 
not I actually knew what the elements of the Crime charged were or 
whether or not I understood exactly what the term "cnmmal element" 
actually meant 

23 
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17 My defense attorney never explamed to me or dIscussed With me how 
the elements of the cnme charged and the eVIdence that the 
prosecutIOn planned to mtroduce mto eVIdence agamst me related to 
one another and dId not dISCUSS how the sentencmg would be done 
espeCIally as It related to the elements of the cnme as m State V Boyd 

18 My defense attorney never mformed me of any of the defenses that 
were avaIlable to me 

19 My defense attorney never mtended to offer any defense to the court 
on .my behalf 

20 My defense attorney never explamed to me or dIscussed WIth me any 
kmd of defense strategy 

21 My defense attorney never explamed to me or dIscussed WIth me any 
of the tactIcal chOIces that they eIther made or were planmng to make 

22 My defense attorney dIctated to me exactly how my case was gomg to 
be handled and offered no alternative optIons 

23 My defense attorney falled to properly acquamt themselves WIth the 
law and the facts surroundmg my case and as a dIrect result of theIr 
mtentional neghgence, there was a very serious error m theIr 
assessment of both the law and the facts 

24 Because of my defense attorney's gross neglect and hIS may legal 
errors no defense at aU was put m Issue for me durmg the Court 
proceedmgs 

25 My defense attorney dId not subject the prosecutIon's case to any 
adversanal testIng 

26 My defense attorney faIled to oppose the prosecutIOn's case WIth any 
adversanal lItIgatIOn 

27 My defense attorney faIled to functIOn as the government's adversary 
m any sense of the word 

28 My defense attorney falled to pursue any of the legal recourse that 
were avaIlable to hIm 

29 The attorney that represented me on thiS charge m Court faIled to 
functIOn as the counsel that the ConstItutIOn's SIxth Amendment 
Guarantees 



30 My defense attorney failed to call ahbi wItnesses on my behalf whIch 
would have proven my mnocence 

31 My defense attorney faIled to appeal my case after I was convIcted 
when I wanted an appeal 

HIS counsel's representatIOn was not withm the range and scope of 

competence demanded by StrIckland and ItS progeny 
I 

A convIcted defendant's claIm that counsel's aSSIstance was so defectIve as to 

requll e reversal of a conVIctIOn reqUIres that the defendant show first, that the 

defiCIent performance prejUdICed the defense so as to deprIve the defendant of a faIr 

trIal Sosebee v Leeke.tS C 362, F 2nd 221 (1987), cltmg StrIckland v. Washmgton. 

46 S E 2D 813 (1984) See also Butler V State. 286 S C 441,334 S E 2d 813 (1985), 

and HIll v, Lockhart, 474 U S 88 (1985) 

June 4,2010 
GreenVIlle, South Carohna 

Respectfully submItted, 

Damel J Farnsworth, J (S C Bar # 6922) 
FARNSWORTH LAW OFFICES, LLC 
Attorney for the ApplIcant 
414 Pettlgru Street, SUIte A 
Post Office Box 8719 
GreenVIlle, South CarolIna 29604 
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STATE or SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 

RIcky D Gllstrap, SCDC# 198939 
ApplIcant, 

vs 

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 
Respondent 

) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
) C A No 2010-CP-23-612 
) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE 

I hereby certIfy that I have served the Amendment to PCR ApplIcatIOn on the State of 

South Carolma by deposltmg a copy of the same In the Umted States Mall, postage preprud, on 

June ,!-\'Y, 2010 addressed to the attorney of record, Karen C RatIgan, Office of the Attorney 

General, Post Office Box 11549, ColumbIa, South Carolma, 29211 

SWORN to and s bscnbed before me thIS 
111-- day of " ,2010 

NOT AR Y PUBLIC FOR S UTH CAROLINA 
My CommISSIOn ExpIres 1'J1'I: 

I 

Legal ASSIstant to DanIel J Farnsworth, Jr 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) 
) 

RIcky Dale GIlstrap, ) 
seD C No 198939, ) 

) 
Applicant, ) 

) 
v ) 

) 
State of South Carohna, ) 

) 
Respondent ) 

---------------------) 

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
C A No 201O-CP-23-0612 

RETURN 

In response to the post-conVlctton rellef appllcatlon filed January 25, 2010, the 
I 

Respondent would show thIS Court 

I 

The ApplIcant IS Incarcerated With the South Carohna Department of CorrectIons 

pursuant to the GreenVllle County Clerk of Court's orders of commItment The Greenvdle 

County Grand Jury mdlcted the Apphcant at the March 2009 tenn of General SessIOns for two 
I 

(2) counts of forgery (2008-GS-23-8163, -8164) and the ApplIcant WaIved presentment on the 

charge of possessIon of cocaIne base (crack cocame) (2009-G8-23-4457) Bnan Johnson, 

EsqUIre represented the ApplIcant 

On October 6, 2009, the Apphcant pled guIlty The Honorable John C Few sentenced 

the ApplIcant to concurrent terms of seven (7) years for each count of forgery and three (3) years 

Impnsonment and a $2000 fine suspended on the service of one (1) year Impnsonment, a $1000 
" 

fine, and three (3) years probatIon for posseSSlOn of cocaIne base, first offense 

Attached hereWIth and Incorporated herem by reference are the records of the GreenVllIe 

County Clerk of Court regardIng the subject conVlctions, the Apphcant's records from the South 

27 
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Carohna Department of CorrectIOns, and the gUIlty plea transcnpt 

II 

In hIs appitcatlon for post-convIctton rellef the Apphcant alleges he IS bemg held m 

custody unlawfully for the followmg reasons 

I Ineffecttve assIstance of counsel, 
a AdVIsed the maxImum sentence was five (5) years 
b Faded to research and study the case 

2 "Sentencmg Judge Imposed a sentence greater than a maxImum allowed 
by law" 

In a document tItled "Supplement (Ammended) to PCR Post ConVIctIon RelIef' filed 

February 15,2010, the Apphcant alleges 
I 

1 "I was sentenced to 7 years on thts charge whIch clearly IS more than the 
maxImum allowed by law" 

III 

The Respondent asserts the ApplIcant's allegatIon that rus attorney was meffectIve IS 

WIthout ment The Respondent asserts the Apphcant's attorney rendered effectIve asSIstance 

well wIthm the standard of "reasonableness wIthtn profeSSIOnal norms" for a cnmmal defense 

attorney 

Where meffectIve asSIstance of counsel IS alleged as a ground for rehef, the ApplIcant 

must prove that "counsel's conduct so undermmed the proper functIomng of the adversanal 

process that the tnal cannot be relled on as haVIng produced a Just result" Stnckland V 

Washmgton, 466 US 668, 686, 104 S Ct 2052, 2064 (1984), Butler V State, 286 S C 441, 

442,334 S E 2d 813,814 (1985) 

The proper measure of performance IS whether the attorney prOVIded representation 

wltrun the range of competence requrred m cnmmal cases The courts presume counsel 

2 



"rendered adequate assIstance and made all slgmticant declslOns m the exerCIse of reasonable 

professIonal Judgment" Stnckland, 466 U S at 690, 104 S Ct at 2066 The Apphcant must 

overcome thIS presumptlOn m order to receIve relIef See Cherry v State, 300 S C 115, 118, 386 

S E 2d 624, 625 (1989) 

A two-pronged test IS used m evaluatmg allegations of meffectIve assIstance of counsel 

FIrst, the appbcant must prove counsel's perfonnance was deficIent Under thIS prong, attorney 

perfonnance IS measured by ItS "reasonableness under prevaIlmg professional nonns" Cherry v 

State, 300 Seat 117, 386 S E 2d at 625 (quotmg Stnckland, 466 US at 688, 104 S Ct at 

2065) Second, counsel's defiCIent perfonnance must have prejudIced the ApplIcant such that 

"there IS a reasonable probabIlIty that, but for counsel's unprofessIOnal errors, the result of the 

proceedmg would have been dtfferent" Cherry, 300 SCat 117-18, 386 S E 2d at 625 "A 

reasonable probabIlIty IS a probabilIty suffiCIent to undennme confidence In the outcome of 

tnal" Johnson v State, 325 S C 182, 186, 480 S E 2d 733, 735 (1997) (CItIng Stnckland v 

WashIngton, 466 US 668, 104 S Ct 2052 (1984» 

The Respondent subnuts the Apphcant cannot satisfy eIther reqwrement of the Stnckland 

v WashIngton test However, the allegatIon of meffectlve assistance of counsel probably ratses 

questions of fact that cannot be conclUSIvely refuted by the record The Respondent requests an 

eVIdentIary heanng to fully resolve thls Issue See Sharper v State, 279 S C 264, 265, 305 

S E 2d 247,248 (1983) (CIting Norman v State, 276 S C 278,277 S E 2d 707 (1981» 

IV 

The Respondent derues each allegation not expressly adnutted, qualIfied or explamed 

3 
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v 

WHEREFORE, havmg made 1tS Return, the Respondent requests that a heanng be held 

and counsel appomted to represent the Apphcant 

By 

Apnl ~ \ ,2010 

4 

Respectfully submItted, 

HENRY DARGAN McMASTER 
Attorney General 

JOHN W McINTOSH 
ChIef Deputy Attorney General 

SALLEY W ELLIOTT 
Assistant Deputy Attorney General 

KAREN C RATIGAN 
Assistant Attorney General 

POBox 11549 
Columbta, S C 29211 

A~ 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 

RICKY DALE GILSTRAP, 198939 

Apphcant, 

vs 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 

Respondent 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

----------------------------~) 

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 

2010-CP-23-0612 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL 

1 I am an employee of the Respondent m the above-captIoned actIon 

2 Regular commUnIcatIOn by matI eXIsts throughout the State of South CarolIna and that thts IS a 
proper clfcumstance of servIce by mati 

3 I have thIs day served a copy of the Return In the above-captIoned matter on the folloWIng person 
by deposltmg same In the Umted States maIl, postage prepmCI 

RIcky Dale GIlstrap, 198939 
Trenton CorrectIOnal InstItutIOn 
84 Greenhouse Road 
Trenton SC 29847 

DATED thiS 21st day of Apnl, 2010 

~ Carey, Leg Asslstan~ 
For Respondent 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 

Rlcky GJ.lstrap, 

Appllcant, 

-VS-

State of South CarolJ.na, 

Respondent 

B E FOR E 

COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 

Case No(s) 2011CP2300612 

TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD 

February 22, 2011 
Greenvllle, South CarolJ.na 

HONORABLE ROBIN B STILWELL, Judge 

A P PEA RAN C E S 

KAREN RATIGAN, Esqulre 
Attorney for the State 

DANIEL J FARNSWORTH, JR , EsquJ.re 
Attorney for the Appllcant 

Recorded by 

TranscrJ.bed by 

Mary DJ.Glrolamo 
CJ.rcult Court Reporter 

Teresa B Johnson 
ClrcuJ.t Court Reporter 
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EXHIBITS PAGE 

DESCRIPTION 

APPLICANT EXHIBITS 

(No exh1b1ts offered 

RESPONDENT EXHIBITS 

(No exh1b1ts offered ) 

COURT EXHIBITS 

(No exh1b1ts offered 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Remarks 

THE COURT All r1ght Lady, Gentlemen, 

good morn1ng How are y'all d01ng today? Or 

afternoon I'm sorry Let's see who I've got 

here I've got Ms Garr1do 

Is that you? 

THE INTERPRETER Yes 

THE COURT Mr Mackey Mr Mackey 

Mr Gllstrap All r1ght 

And you are, Slr? 

MR WILLIAMS W1ll1ams 

THE COURT Mr W1ll1ams? Okay 

MS RATIGAN They transported h1m for 

some reason 

h1m today 

We'll be able to go forward on 

THE COURT You w1II? Okay Good All 

r1ght Good I had on my docket 1t was 

cont1nued But that's okay All r1ght 

The reason I have you out here now before 

we get started lS to glve you an adV1sement 

about the nature of post-conv1ctlon rel1ef 

appl1cat1ons and the benef1ts and potent1al 

p1tfalls of be1ng granted potent1ally a post­

conv1ct1on rel1ef appllcat10n 

4 

It's 1mportant for you to know what I can't 
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Remarks 5 

1 do In a post-convlctlon rellef appllcatlon 

2 That lS, I can't change your sentence I can't 

3 change the charges I can't change 

4 classlflcatlons of your, uh, of the cr1mes I 

5 can't change the way you do your tlme at the 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Department of Correctlons Really, the sole, 

uh, remedy that I'm llmlted to lS to send you 

back to tr1al for a new tr1al 

Now, that could be good to you, but that 

could be bad to you as well Because 1f you go 

back to the C1rcu1t court for a new tr1al, what 

happens lS you start from square one, Wh1Ch 

means 1f you benef1tted from a plea 

negot1at1on, you benef1tted from charges be1ng 

dropped or 1nd1ctments be1ng dropped, 1f you 

benef1tted from a Jury's verd1ct 1n some way, 

1f you benefltted frow a Judge who maybe gave 

you less than the maX1mum sentence on the 

charge to wh1ch you e1ther pled or for Wh1Ch 

you were conv1cted, then you go back to C1rcu1t 

court w1thout the benef1t of those negot1at1ons 

or the benef1ts of those conceSS1ons or 

mod1f1cat1ons 

I tell you that because 1t has happened 1n 

the past that appl1cants have been granted 



Remarks 6 

1 post-convlctlon rellef and they go back to 

2 trlal court only to dlscover that they are In a 

3 much worse poslt1on than they would have been 

4 1f they had Just accept~d the orlg1nal sentence 

5 of the court 

6 Now, I don't tell you that to d1ssuade you 

7 from com1ng 1n front of me w1th post-conv1ct1on 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

rel1ef appl1catlon I'm here to hear your 

cases I'm happy to hear your cases So 

please, uh, feel free to put your case up on 

the record I'll hear 1t I'll conslder 1t 

very dellberately But I d1d want you to know 

what can happen 1n some cases 1f you are 

granted a post-conv1ct1on rel1ef appllcatlon 

Okay All r1ght 
I 

Ms Rat1gan, who are you gOlng to do flrst? 

MS RATIGAN Uh, we can do Mr Wlll1ams 

THE COURT All r1ght 

(WHEREUPON, there 1S a break 1n the record ) 

THE COURT All r1ght Let's call the 

case -- call to bar the case of R1Cky G1lstrap 

versus the State of South Carol1na, case number 

2010-CP-23-0612 

Ms Rat1gan 

MS RATIGAN Thank you, Your Honor May 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

RICky GIlstrap - DIrect Exammanon by Mr Farnsworth 

lt please the Court Mr Gllstrap was 1ndlcted 

for two counts of forgery and then walved 

presentment on the charge of PosseSSlon of 

Cocalne base He was represented on these 

charges by Mr Johnson 

7 

On October 6th, 2009, he pled gUllty before 

Judge Few He recelved concurrent sentences of 

seven years for each count of Forgery and then 

three years and a $2000 flne suspended on the 

serVlce of one year and a $1000 flne and three 

years probatlon for PosseSSlon of Cocalne base 

f1rst offense He dld not f1le an appeal The 

State 1S ready to proceed 

THE COURT Mr Farnsworth? 

MR FARNSWORTH Thank you, Judge We'd 

call R1Cky Gllstrap please 

THE CLERK If you wlll, step around over 

here please Place your left hand on the Blble 

and ra1se your rlght hand 

RICKY GILSTRAP 

havlng flrst been sworn, test1f1es as follows 

THE CLERK Thank you You may be 

seated State your full name for the record 

please 

THE WITNESS R1Cky Gllstrap 



RIcky GIlstrap - DIrect Exammatlon by Mr Farnsworth 
I 

8 

1 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR FARNSWORTH 

3 Q Mr Gllstrap, you know we are here pursuant 

4 to your plea In March of 2009 for the charges that 
I 

5 were read Uh, Brlan Johnson was your attorney, lS 

6 that correct? 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

Yes, Slr That's correct 

Okay Tell the Court what you understood 

9 was the maXlmum penalty you were faclng the day you 
I 

10 showed up to court 

11 A Up to that pOlnt, I was told that I would 

12 be faclng flve years on the charge 

13 Q Okay And thls lS two forgery charges, 

14 correct? 

15 A Yes, Slr Yes, Slr 

16 Q And then you had a possesslon of cocalne 

17 charge? 

18 A Yes, Slr 

19 Q All rlght And, uh, you were on the trlal 

20 docket to proceed to trlal the next day, lS that 

22 A Yes, Slr Unfortunately 

23 Q Before gettlng the trlal docket, what klnd 

24 of offers, plea offers dld your attorney brlng you as 

25 far as what the State was wllllng to do on the two 
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Rlcky GIlstrap - DIrect ExammatIOn by Mr Farnsworth 

1 forgerles? 

2 A They, uh, -- flve years 

3 Q And flve years was the maXlmum for the 

4 charge of Forgery less than $5000, rlght? 

5 A Yes, Slr That's what I understood at the 

6 tlme 

7 

8 

9 

Q And you dldn't accept that because It was 

the maXlmum? 

A Yes, Slr 

10 Q And Mr Johnson wasn't able to get the 

11 prosecutor to budge off of that offer? 

12 A No, Slr 

13 Q Okay You went to court that day In March 

14 of 2009 to go ahead and plead gUllty ---

15 A Yes, Slr 

9 

16 Q to the two forgerles and the possesslon 

17 of cocalne? 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

Yes, Slr 

What dld Mr Johnson tell you about the 

20 offer, whether It changed or anythlng? 

21 A That It was stlll the same That was It 

22 I'd have to take the flve-year plea 

23 Q Dld he say what he was gOlng to ask for? 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

He would ask for three years 

Dld he tell you what he felt the Judge 



RICky GIlstrap - DIrect Exammation by Mr Farnsworth 10 

1 would do? 

2 A Well, uh, up to that tlme, I was lnformed 

3 that lt was a subsequent thlrd and above property 

4 crlme I thought there was a chance that we could 

5 get lt to three But at the very most, you know, I 

6 was looklng at flve 

7 Q And when was the flrst tlme you were told 

8 that the charges you were pleadlng to, the two 

9 forger~es actually carry -- actually were thlrd or 

10 above property crlmes and would carry up to ten years 

11 each lnstead of Just flve? 

12 A When I came lnto the courtroom to make my 

13 plea Inltlally, when the Judge opened up, he told 

14 me that I had forgery less than $5000 would carry 

15 flve years and forgery wlth no dollar amount would 

16 carry a maXlmum of three years Further on lnto lt, 

17 he spoke to Mr Campbell and sald walt a mlnute, one 

18 of these or both of these are subsequent thlrd and 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

above 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Mr Campbell was llke yes 

ThlS lS the Judge asklng the prosecutor? 

Yes 

In the mlddle of your plea? 

In the mlddle of my plea 

Okay So then what dld your attorney say 

Uh, he sald walt After that, he lnformed 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 
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RIcky GIlstrap - DIrect ExarrnnatlOn by Mr Farnsworth 

the Judge that he dld not dlSCUSS thls wlth me 

appeared to be so but he hadn't dlscussed thls 

sltuatlon wlth me The Judge sald, well, you can 

dlSCUSS It wlth hlm now At that pOlnt, we had a 

dlScusslon off record 

11 

It 

Q 

A 

Okay So you had a break durlng the plea? 

Yes, Slr Just a short one 

Q You talked wlth Mr Johnson about the fact 

that the penalty lS more now than you thought It was? 

A Rlght It was elther that or go to trlal 

If you were found gUllty at trlal, you would probably 

get the maXlmum But we can go ahead It wasn't 

llkely now that we could get the three, but we could 

get the flve that was orlglnally on the table You 

would get flve at the most because It was already on 

the table 

Q 

Johnson, 

A 

Q 

So durlng your break, your attorney, Mr 

sald that he could get you the flve years? 

Yes, Slr 

Okay 

Yes, Slr 

A He was gOlng to ask for the three 

Q Okay Is that why you went ahead wlth the 

plea? 

A Absolutely It dldn't feel llke much 

cholce at the tlme I felt llke I shouldn't have 



RICky GIlstrap - DIrect ExammatlOn by Mr Farnsworth 12 

1 even been to that po~nt A year before th~s, ~f 

2 someone had told me you'd be up there fac~ng ten 

3 years, I would have gladly accepted the f~ve years 

4 Q So the f~ve-year recommendat~on that Mr 
I 

5 Campbell had been offerlng for a good wh~le, you 

6 would have taken that had you known your max~mum 

7 penalty would have been ten years on these charges? 

8 A Absolutely That would have been half of 

9 what the charges carry and I felt l~ke that would 

10 have been a good deal 

11 Q Okay But the way your lawyer expla1ned lt 

12 to you and the way you understood lt, they were 

13 offerlng you the maX1mum penalty of the charges? 

14 A Flve years 1S what they carry Why 

15 plead to 1t? 

16 Q When you pled though, and after they 

17 explalned that you are look~ng at -- after the Judge 

18 and then your lawyer expla1ned on the break that you 

19 were fac1ng more tlme than yoP thought, you went on 

20 and pled anyway, d1dn't you? 

21 

22 

23 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, Slr 

Why 1S that? 
I 

I was stlll under the lmpress10n that I was 

24 gOlng to get the flve at the ~ery most stlll 

25 Q Was there any recommendat10n by the 
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1 SollCltor or agreement or negotlatlon? 

2 A None at that pOlnt Up untll then, they 

3 were saylng the flve 

4 Q I'm thlnklng In the plea transcrlpt when 

5 the Judge asked the Sollcltor, Mr Campbell, was 

6 there a recommendatlon, he sald no 

7 A He sald none None from the State, Your 

8 Honor 

9 Q Dld that surprlse you? 

10 A Yeah, It actually dld For a moment, I 

11 thought that that would maybe be to my beneflt 

12 Apparently, lt wasn't 

13 Q Okay And, uh, agaln, If you had known 

14 your two forgery charges carr led up to ten years 

13 

15 each, would you have accepted the flve-year plea they 

16 offered months before? 

17 A Absolutely, wlthout a doubt 

18 Q Would you have been put on the trlal docket 

19 and held out for a better deal If that -- you had 

20 known that? 

21 A No, no 

22 Q Dld Brlan Johnson dlscuss wlth you what 

23 happened after the plea? 

24 A After the plea, we stepped In the corrldor 

25 over there and he apologlzed and sald that lt was hls 



RIcky GIlstrap - DIrect ExarmnatIon by Mr Farnsworth 
I 

14 

1 fault and he was sorry He d1dn't tell me about the 

2 ten years and I should f1le a motlon for post-

3 conv1ct1on rel1ef because of that He d1dn't lnform 

4 me of the ten years 

5 Q Dld Mr Johnson d1SCUSS w1th you your r1ght 

6 to appeal the sentence after the plea? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

A No, Slr 

Q Okay D1d you ever ask hlm about that? 

A I was shook At that p01nt, I dldn't even 

say anythlng leavlng the courtroom At the end of 

the transcr1pt, you can see I was speechless I 

never seen that com1ng I re;ally and truly had In my 

13 gut that I was gett1ng f1ve years that day 

14 Q D1d the Judge on hlS own -- dld Judge Few 

15 on h1S own say that you were faclng the charges that 

16 were now gOlng to be enhance~ because of prlor 

17 conv1ctlons or 1S that someth1ng the prosecutor 

18 lnserted? 

19 A The Judge brought lt up f1rst I thlnk 

20 even 1n the transcr1pt he says one of these 1S a 

21 subsequent thlrd and above, 1S lt not, Mr Campbell 

22 I th1nk the prosecutor then replled that they both 

23 were, not Just one, they both were I thlnk that's 

24 how 1 t went 

25 Q Okay Old your attorney obJect to the 

45 



46 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 
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Judge changlng or modlfYlng what the change was and 

the penalty ---

A No, Slr 

Q wlthout the prosecutor's assertlon or 

allegatlon or motlon? 

A No 

Q Okay Dld, uh, dld you have any other 

dlscusslons wlth your attorney Brlan Johnson after 

that day? 

A No, Slr 

Q How long has that been? 

Uh, about 18 months 

15 

A 

Q You telllng thls court that agaln that you 

If you had known what these penaltles carrled, 

those two forgery charges carr led, that you would 

have taken a plea that was offered months ago to flve 

years? 

A That's what the sltuatlon would have been 

If I had known 

Q Okay Please answer any questlons that the 

ASSlstant Attorney General mlght have 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

23 BY MS RATIGAN 

24 Q Just a couple of qUlck questlons Durlng 

25 the plea, when y'all took that break and you and Mr 



RIcky GIlstrap - Cross-ExammatIOn by Ms RatIgan 16 

1 Johnson revlewed the thlrd or greater property 

2 offense of ten years, you stlll declded to go forward 

3 and plea? 

4 A Yes, ma'am 

5 Q And that's because you thought you were 

6 gOlng to get flve years? 

7 A He gave me the lmpresslon that that was 

8 what was gOlng to ,happen 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Dld he tell you that? 

A He sald we'll get you the flve that was on 

the table The three lS probably out the wlndow but 

we'll get you the flve that's on the table, that's 

already on the table 

locked ln to that 

I thought that meant lt was 

Q Why dldn't you obJect when the State sald 

there was no recommendatlon? 

A To be honest, llke I sald, llke, at the 

tlme, I thought he sald no recommendatlon, that maybe 

that was -- could be to my beneflt I was nervous at 

the tlme I mean, who knows I thlnk my attorney's 

Job, I thlnk, would be to obJect, not mlne 

Q Well, but the Judge asked you lf you had 

been promlsed anythlng for that plea and you sald no, 

dldn't you? 

A Yes, slr 
I 

Yes, ma'am I sald I dldn't 
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1 thlnk that -- I had a dlScusslon or somethlng slml1ar 

2 to that before about the promlses sltuatlon The way 

3 I understood lt was that lt meant l1ke the dlstrlct 

4 attorney or someone had promlsed you somethlng ln 

5 exchange for somethlng 

6 Q So Mr Johnson telllng you would you would 

7 get flve years, you dldn't thlnk that was a promlse? 

8 A Well, yeah That was a deal 

9 MS RATIGAN That's all I have, Your 

10 Honor 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT Redl.rect? 

MR FARNSWORTH Uh, no, Judge 

THE COURT All rlght Mr Gl1strap, you 

can step down 

All rl.ght 

appllcant? 

Thanks 

Anythlng further from the 

MR FARNSWORTH We'd call Brlan Johnson 

THE CLERK Place your left hand on the 

Blble please Ralse your rlght hand 

BRIAN JOHNSON 

havlng flrst been sworn, testlfles as follows 

THE CLERK Thank you You may be seated 

State your full name for the record please 

THE WITNESS Brlan Patrlck Johnson 

THE CLERK Thank you 



Bnan Johnson - DIrect EXamInatIOn by Mr Farnsworth 18 

1 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR FARNSWORTH 

3 Q Mr Johnson, you recall the plea wlth, uh, 

4 Mr Gllstrap here? 

5 A Yes, I do 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Q Uh, were you lncorrect In what the maXlmum 

penaltles would be on these forgerles? 

A Yes, I was I had told hlm otherwlse 

before we got up there 

Q Okay And when the -- when Judge Few 

brought that to your attentlon, I belleve you had a 

-- you dld have a llttle conversatlon off the record 

wlth your cllent? 

A Yes, Slr 

Q Okay Dld you stlll lead hlm to belleve 

and hope that you would get the flve years anyway? 

A I can't remember the conversatlon In 

totallty But I thlnk, dOlng my best to recall, I 

belleve I told hlm that I would ask for flve I 

don't remember how It'S probably In the transcrlpt 

what I actually asked for, but I belleve I asked hlm 

that I would lndeed ask for the flve and try to get 

that 

24 Q I belleve the transcrlpt lncludes you asked 

25 for three Three and flve, I thlnk you mentloned 
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1 Does that sound ---

2 A That sounds about rlght 

3 Q --- llke what you remember? Uh, you dldn't 

4 obJect when Judge Few amended the maXlmum penalty or 

5 declded that the charge would carry more than what 

6 the prosecutor had announced they carry? 

7 A I dld not 

8 Q And do you remember lf you had talked to my 

9 cllent about hlS rlght to appeal? 

10 A I don't belleve I mentloned lt 

11 Q Okay Even after thlS error that you 

12 reallzed and dlscussed wlth hlm and sort of, uh, 

13 smoothed over durlng the plea, dld you not then tell 

14 hlm, hey, you stlll have a rlght to appeal thlS? 

15 A I don't belleve I mentloned lt to be 

16 honest 

17 Q Okay Was, uh, -- do you recall whether 

18 the plea offer from George Campbell, the Sollcltor, 

19 was flve years for a good whlle before thlS was done? 

20 A It was, uh, -- lt lnltlally started out 

21 wlth two forgery charges, whlch was flve Then he 

22 plcked up a Possesslon of Cocalne charge later and lt 

23 remalned flve 

24 Q Okay So the flve-year recommendatlon was 

25 somethlng that was on the table for a good whlle? 



1 

2 

Bnan Johnson - Cross-ExammatlOn by Ms RatIgan 

A Yes, Slr 

Q Okay And, uh, that would have been what 

3 you 1nstructed your cl1ent was the maX1mum for 

4 forgerles? 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

Yes, Slr 

And your talks w1th the SOllcltor never 
I 

7 1ncluded consecut1ve t1me? 

8 A No, as I understood 1t, George, he dldn't 

9 choose to see lt as a th1rd or subsequent offense 

10 Q Okay And when the Judge declded to treat 

20 

lilt that way and George had asserted that, you dldn't 

12 obJect to that? 

13 

14 

15 

16 

I d1d not As far as I was concerned, he 
I 

A 

was r1ght It was Just someth1ng -- generally, a 

Sollcltor wlil make that, uh, apparent However, lt 

wasn't done th1S t1me So I d1dn't really tell -- I 

17 dldn't tell R1Cky that 

Q All rlght Uh, ln your talks w1th -- you 18 

19 may not be able to answer thlS In your talks w1th 

20 R1Cky and as that plea offer for f1ve years was on 

21 the table, know1ng 1t was the maXlrnurn for what you 

22 thought the forger1es would carry, do you belleve he 

23 would have cons1dered taklng that f1ve-year plea 1f 

24 he reallzed the penaltles were actually ten years on 

25 those? 
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A Yes Yes, I do 

MR FARNSWORTH That's all I have 

you 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

5 BY MS RATIGAN 

21 

Thank 

6 Q Why dldn't Mr Gllstrap take the flve-year 

7 offer? 

8 A As he understood lt, as I explalned to hlm, 

9 f1ve years was the max He d1dn't understand why 

10 they wanted h1m to do f1ve years cons1der1ng, I 

11 belleve, he helped cooperate wlth the 1nvest1gat1on 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Q D1d you expla1n to h1m that he could 

rece1ve concurrent or consecutlve sentences? 

A I d1d I d1d tell h1m that the sentences 

could be done concurrent or consecut1ve 

Q And you adv1sed h1m of the m1n1mum and 

maX1mum sentence he was fac1ng on each of these three 

charges, even wlthout the ten-year? 

A Yes, ma'am Although I do bel1eve -- I 

belleve I told h1m f1ve on both the forger1es I 

don't bel1eve I ever sa1d three I bel1eve I told 

h1m f1ve on both of them 

Q Aga1n, you expla1ned the Judge could run 

24 that consecut1ve 1f he so chose? 

25 A Yes, ma'am 
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Bnan Johnson - Cross-ExammatIOn by Ms RatIgan 22 

Q And It was Mr Gllstrap who made the 

declslon not to take that flve-year offer for a good 

long blt? 

A Yes, ma'am 

Q Okay And you had Obvlously hlS RAP sheet, 

hlS prlor offenses? 

A 

Q 

Yes, ma'am 

Was there any questlon once the Judge 

brought that up that they were -- these were properly 

thlrd offense or greater property? 

A It was no questlon Once he sald that, I 

reallzed lt to be true 

Q And durlng the break, durlng the plea when 

you talked about thlS wlth hlm, you explalned to hlm 

the concept of a thlrd or greater property offense? 

A Yes, ma'am 

Q And you told hlm at that pOlnt that he was 

faclng ten years? 

A Yes, ma'am 

Q And dld you make a recommendatlon as to 

whether he should go ahead and plead or whether he 

should go to trlal? 

A Uh, I don't remember exactly, but lt was my 

oplnlon even before thlS that they had hlm pretty 

red-handed It was always my recommendatlon to hlm 
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that he plead It would have been the same whether 

lt was ten or flve 

Q But Mr Gllstrap was the one who made that 

ultlmate declslon that day? 

A 

Q 

Yes, ma'am 

Dld you tell hlm how to answer the Judge's 

7 questlons? 

8 A No, rna' am 

9 Q In your oplnlon, were there any legal 

10 errors as a result of the plea that could have been 

11 appealed? 

12 A No legal errors, no, ma'am 

13 MS RATIGAN That's all I have, Your 

14 Honor 

15 

16 

THE COURT Any redlrect? 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR FARNSWORTH 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Mr Johnson, when you resumed the plea 

Durlng the break, you talked to your cllent and 

explalned to hlm that the penaltles were more severe 

than he was aware or you were aware at the tlme, dld 

you lndlcate to hlm though that you could stlll get 

the flve years? 

A I dldn't say for sure I told hlm that I 

would go for the flve, that that's what we should 
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shoot for I bel1eve he understood that he could 

st111 get the ten That was the ma1n purpose of the 

3 conversat1on that you could 1ndeed get the ten, but I 

4 would -- my th1nk1ng now 1S we should shoot for f1ve 

5 Q And aga1n, you th1nk, based on your 

6 conversat10ns w1th h1m, 1f he knew all along that he 

7 was fac1ng ten, he probably would accept the f1ve? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A I bel1eve that to be true 

MR FARNSWORTH That's all we have, 

Judge Thank you 

THE COURT All r1ght All r1ght Any 

recross, Ms Rat1gan? 

MS RATIGAN No, Your Honor 

THE COURT You can step down, Mr 

Johnson 

Anyth1ng further from the appl1cant? 

MR FARNSWORTH No, Your Honor 

THE COURT Anyth1ng from the State? 

MS RATIGAN No, Your Honor 

THE COURT All r1ght I'll take 1t under 

adv1sement 

G11strap 

Thank yOU and good luck to you, Mr 
I 

MR FARNSWORTH Thank you, Judge 

(END OF PROCEEDING) 
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CER TIFICA TE 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 

25 

I, the unders1gned, Teresa B Johnson, Off1c1al 

Court Reporter for the Th1rteenth Jud1c1al C1rcu1t of 

the State of South Carol1na, do hereby cert1fy that the 

forego1ng lS a true, accurate and complete Transcr1pt 

of Record of all the proceed1ngs had and eV1dence 

1ntroduced 1n the tr1al of the capt10ned case, relat1ve 

to appeal, 1n the Court of Common Pleas for Greenv1lle, 

South Carol1na, on th1S 28th day of October, 2011 

I do further cert1fy that I am ne1ther of k1n, 

counsel nor Interest to any party hereto 

Off1c1al Court Reporter 



~tate of ~outb QraroItna 
'Orbe qctrtutt qcourt of toe ijtbtrteentb 31 ubtttaI qctrtutt 

Robin B Stilwell 
Judge 

Ms Karen C Ratlgan 
ASSIstant Attorney General 
Post Office Box 11549 
ColumbIa SC 29211 

February 24,2011 

Greenville County Courthouse 
305 East North Street Surte 315 

Greenville SC 29601 2113 
Phone (864) 467 8406 

Fax. (864) 235 3625 
rstJlwellJ@sccourts org 

Mr Damel J Farnsworth, Jr 
Attorney at Law 
Post OffIce Box 8719 
GreenvIlle, SC 29604 

RE RIcky Gllstrap V State of South Carolma 
201O-CP-23-0612 

Dear Counsel 

I have had the OppOrtunIty to reVIew the above-referenced case me m context WIth the 
testunony and arguments submItted at the hearmg I would respectfully deny the applIcatIon, 
fmdmg specIfICally that the apphcant faded to meet hIS burden of provmg that representatIOn was 
defiCIent or that any defICIency prejUdIced hIm many matenal or substantIal way It IS clear 
from the record that Mr Gllstrap was adVIsed of the maxImum possIble sentence that he could 
have receIved under the law for the offense Furthermore, even If the Court had proceeded under 
the notIOn that the forgenes were up to five-year offenses, Mr GIlstrap stIll faced up to thIrteen 
years of mcarceratIon I would apprecIate Ms RatIgan preparmg an Order memonahzmg thIS 
fmdmg and submIttmg the same to me 

I thank. each of you for havmg tned an excellent case and look forward to seemg you 
agam soon 

WIth kmdest regards, 

~/?:'~ ROBINBS1= ~ 
RBS cor 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) 

Ricky Dale Glistrap, ) 
S CDC No 198939, ) 

) 
Appilcant, ) 

) 
v ) 

) 
State of South Carolina, ) 

) 
Respondent ) 

) 

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 

THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

C A No 2010-CP-23-0612 

ORDER OF DISMISSAL 

This matter comes before the Court by way of an applicatIOn for post-conviction relief 

(PCR) filed January 25, 2010 The Respondent made Its return on Apnl 21, 2010 An 

eVIdentiary heanng Into the matter was convened on Febmary 22, 2011 at the GreenvIlle County 

Courthouse The Applicant was present at the heanng and represented by Damel J FarnswOl th, 

Jr, EsquIre Karen C RatIgan, Esqll1re of the South Carohna Office of the Attorney General 

represented the Respondent 

The Apphcant testIfied on hIS own behalf at the PCR heanng Also testifYing was the 

Apphcant's plea counsel, Bnan Johnson, Esqll1re The Court had before It the gUilty plea 

transcript, the records of the GreenvIlle County Clerk of Court, the Apphcant's records from the 

South CalOlIna Department of CorrectIOns, the PCR applIcatIOn, and the Respondent's return 

PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

The Apphcant IS presently confined 111 the South Carolina Department of CorrectIons 

pursuant to orders of commItment from the GreenvIlle County Clerk ot Court The Applicant 

was mdlcted at the March 2009 term of the GreenvIlle County Grand Jury for two (2) counts of 

fOigelY (2008-GS-23-8163, -8164) and the Applrcant waived presentment on the chalge of 



possessIon of cocame base (crack cocame) (2009-GS-23-4457) He was represented by Bnan 

Johnson, EsqUIre 

Onfic'tober 6, 200Vthe ApplIcant pled gUIlty I The Honorable John C Few sentenced 

the ApplIcant to concurrent terms of seven (7) years for each count of forgery and three (3) yeats 

Impnsonment and a $2000 fine suspended on the servIce of one (1) year Impnsonment, a $1000 

fine, and three (3) years probatIon for posseSSlOn of cocame base, first offense The Apphcant 

dId not appeal 

ALLEGATIONS 

In hIS apphcatIOn, the Apphcant alleges he IS bemg held m custody unlawfully for the 

followmg reasons 

1 Ineffective asSIstance of counsel, 
a AdvIsed the maxImum sentence was five (5) years 
b FaIled to research and study the case 

2 "Sentencmg Judge Imposed a sentence greater than a maxImum allowed 
by law" 

In a pro se document tItled "Supplement (Ammended) to peR Post ConvIction Reher' 

filed February 15,2010, the Apphcant alleges 

"I was sentenced to 7 years on thIS charge whIch clearly IS more than the 
maXImum allowed by law" 

The ApplIcant, through counsel, submItted an amendment to hIS applIcation dated June 4, 

2010, m WhICh he alleged the followmg 

IneffectIve aSSIstance of counsel 
a FaIled to conscIentIOusly dIscharge profeSSIOnal responSlblhtIes 
b FaIled to effectively challenge se~rch and seIzure 
c FaIled to act as a dIlIgent and conSCIentlOus advocate 

I 

d FaIled to gIve complete loyalty 
e Old not have ApplIcant's best mterest In mmd 
f FaIled to sel ve the cause m good faIth 
g Neglected necessary mvestigatlOJs and prepaIatlOn 

2 

/ 
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h Old not do necessary factual mvestIgatIons 
Old not do necessary legal research 

J DId not conscIentIOusly gather mfonnatIOn to protect nghts 
k DId not try to have the case settled m a manner that would have 

been to my best advantage 
DId not adVIse me of all my nghts or take any of the actIOns that 
were necessary to protect and preserve them 

m Never properly ascertamed whether or not I actually understood or 
comprehended all of the Issues mvolved m the case 

n Never properly consulted WIth me or kept me mformed 
o Never explamed to me or dIscussed WIth me any ot the elements 
p Never made any attempt to ascertam whether or not I actually 

knew the elements of the cnme change or whether or not I 
understood exactly what "cnmmal element" meant 

q Never explamed or dIscussed With me how the elements of the 
cnme charged and the eVidence that the prosecution planned to 
mtroduce mto eVidence agamst me related to one another and did 
not discuss how the sentencmg would be done espeCIally as It 
related to the elements of the cnme as m State v Boyd 

r Never mformed me of any of the defenses that were avaIlable to 
me 

s Never mtended to offer any defense to the court on my behalf 
t Never explamed to me or dIscussed WIth me any kmd of defense 

strategy 
u Never explamed to me or dIscussed With me any of the tactical 

chOIces that were made or planned to be made 
v Dictated to me exactly how my case was gomg to be handled and 

offered no alternatIve optIOns 
W FaIled to properly acquamt herself WIth the law and facts 

surroundmg my case and, as a result, there was a very senous error 
111 the assessment of both the law and the facts 

x No defense at all was put m Issue for me dunng the Court 
proceedmgs 

y Did not subject the prosecutIOn's case to any adversanal testmg 
z Failed to oppose the prosecutIOn's case WIth any adversanal 

htigatIOn 
aa Failed to function as the government's adversary m any sense of 

the word 
bb Faded to pursue any of the legal recourse that was available 
cc FaIled to functIOn as the counsel that the Constltution's Sixth 

Amendment guarantees 
dd FaIled to call ahbi WItnesses on my behalf 
ee FaIled to appeal my case 

3 
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

ThIS Court has had the opportumty to reVIew the record m Its entirety and has heard the 

testimony and arguments presented at the PCR heanng This Court has fmther had the 

opportumty to observe each wItness who testified at the heanng, and to closely pass upon th~lr 

credIbIlIty ThIs Court has weighed the testimony accordmgly 

Set forth below are the relevant findmgs of fact and conclUSIOns of law as reqlllred by 

S C Code Ann § 17-27-80 (2003) 

Ineffectlve Assistance of Counsel 

The ApplIcant alleges he received meffectlve assistance of counsel In a peR action, 

"[t]he burden of proof IS on the applIcant to prove his allegatIons by a preponderance of the 

eVidence" Frasier v State, 351 S C 385, 389, 570 S E 2d 172, 174 (2002) 

For an apphcant to be granted PCR as a result of meffectlve aSSIstance of counsel, he 

must show both (1) that hIS counsel faIled to render reasonably effective aSSIstance under 

prevailIng profeSSIOnal norms, and (2) that he was prejUdICed by hiS counsel's meffectIve 

performance See StrIckland v Washmgton, 466 US 668, 104 S Ct 2052 (1984), Porter v 

State, 368 S C 378, 383, 629 S E 2d 353, 356 (2006) When there has been a guIlty plea, the 

applicant must prove that counsel's representatIon was below the standard of reasonableness and 

that, but for counsel's unprofeSSIOnal errors, there IS a reasonable probabilIty that he would not 

have pled glllity and would have mSIsted on gomg to tnal HIll v Lockhart, 474 US 52, 58-59, 

106 S Ct 366, 370 (1985), Roscoe v State, 345 S C 16, 20, 546 S E 2d 417, 419 (2001) 

The Apphcant stated there had been a plea offer m thIS case for a five (5) year sentence 

recommendatIOn, but that he rejected It The ApplIcant stated that, before the gUIlty plea 

hearIng, plea counsel had told hIm the maXImum sentence was five (5) years but that he would 

4 
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request a three (3) year sentence The Applicant stated that, dunng the plea heanng, the plea 

Judge mentIOned the two (2) forgery charges were ehglble to be treated as thIrd or greater 

propert)' offenses and that he could receIve a ten (10) year sentence on each The Apphcant 

stated he and plea counsel took a break to diSCUSS thIS and that plea counsel saId he would 

leceive a five (5) year sentence If they went forward with the plea The Applicant admItted he 

told the plea Judge he had not been promised anythmg m exchange for pleadIng gUllty but 

explaIned that he dId not thmk plea counsel's statement that he would get a five (5) year sentence 

was a promIse The ApplIcant testIfied plea counsel dId not mform hIm about the nght to appeal 

The Apphcant stated he would have accepted the State's ongmal five (5) year plea offer If he 

had known he was facmg a ten (10) year sentence 

Plea counsel confirmed the plea offer m thIS case was for five (5) years but that the 

Apphcant rejected It because that was the maxImum sentence one could receIve for forgery Plea 

counsel testIfied that, before the gUllty plea heanng, he adVIsed the Applicant of the mmlmum 

and maximum sentences he was facmg and that the judge could order those sentences to be either 

concurrent or consecutIve Plea counsel testified that he told the Apphcant he was lIkely facmg a 

five (5) year sentence Plea counsel testified the plea judge brought up the concept of the 

charges bemg a thIrd or greater property offense (WIth a potentIal ten-year sentence) dUring the 

gUllty plea hearmg Plea counsel testified that, based on hiS review of the ApplIcant's NCIC 

report, there was no questIOn these charges were true thIrd property offenses Plea counsel stated 

they took a break durmg the plea and he explamed to the Apphcant what had happened Plea 

counsel stated he explamed the concept of the thud or greater property offense to the Applicant 

and that he could receIve up to ten (10) years Plea counsel stated the Applicant chose to go 

forward With the gUIlty plea heanng and that he told the Apphcant he would ask for a three to 
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five year sentence Plea counsel stated they did not dISCUSS the nght to appeal but that there were 

no legal errors to appeal from the gUilty plea heanng Plea counsel stated the Apphcant would 

have taken the five (5) year plea offer Ifhe had known he was facmg a ten (10) year sentence 

Regardmg the ApplIcant's claIms ofmeffectlve aSSIstance of counsel, thIS Court finds the 

ApplIcant has faIled to meet hiS burden of proof ThIS Court finds plea counsel adequately 

conferred With the ApplIcant, conducted a proper mvestlgatlOn, and was thoroughly competent m 

hiS representatIOn 

The ApplIcant admItted to the plea judge both that he was gUIlty and that the facts recited 

by the sohcltor were true (Plea transcnpt, p 7, P 8, p 9) The Apphcant also told the plea judge 

that he understood the tnal nghts he was walvmg m pleadmg gUIlty, was satIsfied WIth counsel, 

and had not been coerced m any way (Plea transcnpt, pp 6-7) 

ThIS Court finds the ApplIcant faIled to meet hIS burden of provmg plea counsel should 

have objected to the plea judge's deCISIOn to treat the charges as thud or greater property 

offenses Plea counsel testified that he had adVIsed the Apphcant before the gUIlty plea hearmg 

of the potential sentences he could receIve on all three ~3) charges and that It was wlthm the plea 
I 

judge's dIscretIOn whether to run the sentences concurrent or consecutive ThIS Court finds plea 

counsel's testImony IS credIble The ApplIcant testified the plea Judge stated he could receIve 
I 

ten (10) year sentences on these charges (as third or greater property offenses) and plea counsel 

testified that, durmg the break In the gUIlty plea proceedmgs, he also adVised the Apphcant as 

such Plea counsel testified the ApplIcant made the deCISIOn to contmue WIth the guIlty plea 

hearmg ThIS Court finds that, based on testimony from both the Applicant and plea counsel, the 

ApplIcant made a knowmg deCISIOn to proceed WIth hIS gUIlty plea Furthermore, thIS Court 

notes that, even If the plea judge had proceeded under the notIOn that the forgery charges would 
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be classified as five (5) year offenses, the ApplIcant shll faced a potential mruClmum sentence of 

thIrteen (13) years of incarceratIOn As such, thIS Court finds the ApplIcant's assertIOn that 

would have taken the five (5) year plea offer If he had known he was facing a ten (10) year 

sentence IS not compelhng 

ThIS Court finds the Apphcant faIled to meet hIS burden of prOVIng plea counsel should 

have Informed him of the nght to appeal hIS gUIlty plea ThIS Court notes plea counsel has a 

constItutionally Imposed duty to consult wIth the defendant about an appeal only when there IS 

reason to thInk either (1) that a ratIOnal defendant would want to appeal or (2) that thiS 

defendant reasonably demonstrated to counsel that he was Interested In appealing Roe v Flores-

Ortega, 528 US 470,480, 120 S Ct 1029, 1036 (2000) Although not determInatIve, a hIghly 

relevant factor WIll be whether the convIctIon follows a tnal or a gmlty plea, both because a 

gUIlty plea reduces the scope of potentially appealable Issues and because a plea may Indicate the 

defendant seeks an end to JudICial proceedIngs lQ.. ThIS Court finds the ApplIcant dId not meet 

hIS burden of provmg eIther of the Flores-Ortega cntena and that plea counsel was not oblIgated 

to adVIse him of the nght to appeal hIS gUIlty pleas to these charges ThIS Court further notes 

plea counsel's testimony that here were no appealable Issues from the gUllty plea heanng 

AccordIngly, thIS Court finds the ApplIcant has faIled to prove the first prong of the 

Stnckland test - that plea counsel fatled to render reasonably effectIve aSSIstance under 

prevalhng professlOnal norms The ApplIcant faIled to present speCIfic and compellIng eVIdence 

that plea counsel commItted eIther errors or omISSIons In hIS representatIOn of the ApplIcant 

TIllS Court also finds the ApplIcant has faIled to prove the second prong of Stnckland - that he 

was prejudIced by plea counsel's performance 

ThIS Court concludes the ApplIcant has not met hiS burden of proVIng counsel failed to 



render Ieasonably effective assIstance See FrasIer v State, 35l Seat 389,570 S E 2d at 174 

All Other AllegatIons 

As to any and all allegatIOns that were raIsed m l the applIcatIOn or at the heanng 111 this 

matter and not specIfically addressed m tIus Order, this Court finds the Apphcant faIled to 

present any eVidence regardmg such allegatIOns Accordmgly, this Court finds the ApplIcant 

waIved such allegatIOns and faIled to meet his burden of proof regardmg them Therefore, they 

are hereby demed and dismissed 

CONCLUSION 

Based on all the foregomg, tIus Court finds and concludes the ApplIcant has not 

establIshed any constitutIOnal VIOlatIOns or depnvatIOns before or dUrIng hIS guIlty plea and 

sentencmg proceedmgs Counsel was not defiCient m any manner and the ApplIcant was not 

prejUdICed by counsel's representatIOn Therefore, thIS PCR applIcatIOn must be demed and 

dismIssed With prejUdiCe 

ThIS Court adVises the ApplIcant that he must file a notice of mtent to appeal wlthm tl111 ty 

(30) days from the receipt of thIS Order If he wants to secure appropnate appellate review HIS 

attention IS also dIrected to Rules 203, 206, and 243 of the South CarolIna Appellate Court Rules 

for the appropnate procedures to follow after notIce of mtent to appeal has been tImely filed 
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED 

That the apphcation for post-convICtlon rellef be dented and 
dIsmIssed WIth preJudIce, and 

2 That the Apphcant be remanded to the custody of the Respondent 

AND IT IS SO ORDERED thIs 16th day of March, 2011 

~;;?~~ 
TheOIlOrable Robm B StIlwell 
PresIdmg Judge, ThIrteenth JudICIal CIrCUIt 

GreenvIlle, South Carolma 
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ARREST WARRANT 

M-176184 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

[XJ Countyl 0 MuniCIpality of 

Greenvtlle 

THE STAle 

IJ9Blnst 
Ricky Dale G1Isirap 

Address 

GreenvIlle, SC 29617-
Phone 

09-GS5728 

Sex M Race W 
ss/\ 

Height 6 Weight 180 
-.....;~ 

DL State ~ DL#" 

DOB 51 111968 Agency OR! "It SC0230000 
Prosecullng Agency Greenvllie County Shenffs Office 
PrOsecullngOftiear Andrew Moates - 1083 
Offense Drugs/possessIOn of less than one gram of meth or 

cocame base 1st 
Offense Code 3009 
CodeIOrdinance Sec. 44-53-037S(A) 

1 hIS warrant IS CERTIFIED FOR SCRVICE In the o Countyl o MUnlClpaUty of 

The accused 
IS to be IilTe$ted end brought before me to be 
dealt With ecoordtng to the law 

(L 8.) 

&;MI." of Jud~ 

Dale 

RETURN 

A copy of tIllS arrest werrant was deINe~ to 

defendant f2.~ 'Dth,6. (j((.~1tl;t-f 

on ~-r.rI01 
ctJ/<_ ~JO~~ 

RETURN WARRANT 

West Greenville Summary Court 
6247 Whtte Horse Road 
Greenvllle. SC 29611 

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROUNA 

Kl County, D MuniCIPality of AFFIDAVIT 

Greenville 
PersonaUy appeared before me the affiant Andrew Moates 

ORIGINAL 
ronnJWtDWGrzy 
$t.AIItm.vG • ...., 
_21~ 

SCCAS18 

who 

being duly sworn deposes and says that defendant RIcky Dale GIlstrap 
did Wlthsn 1I1J5 c:ounty and stale on or abOut 04/0512009 \IIOlale the comins! laws of the 

State of South CaIDlIII8 (or OIdlnanoa of [!] County/ 0 MUnicipality of GreenvLlle 
In the following partJc:ulars. 

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE Drugs/possesSlon of less than one gram of mcth. or COcatllC base 15t 

I further state that there is probable cause to beloeve tNt 1he defendant named above did comllllt 
the c:nme set forth snd that probable cause .. based on the foUowlng fads 

ON 04 OS 09 MR. GILSlRAP WAS FOUND IN POSSESSION OF A WHITE SUBSTANCE WHICH WAS FIELD TESTED 
POSITIVE FOR A COCAINE BASE MR. GILSlRAP WAS IN ACTUAL PHYSICAL OF THE SUBSTANCE THIS 
INCIDENT DID OCCUR WITHIN GREENVILLE COUNTY 

Slgnatute of Affiant 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROUNA 

6U Countyl 0 Mumapalily of 

Greenville 

) 
) Affianr, Address 4 Mcgee Street 
) Greenville, SC 2960 1-

A/IIants Telephone {864)467-5300 

ARREST WARRANT t."1 t. Rt.O 
TO ANY LAW ENFORceMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPAUTY ORAN'f cONs~tA9Ul~~ 

) 

It eppeanng from the above affidavit that \hEn ~ '" reasana:,:R nGdslud~ believe that 

on Of" about 4/512009 defendant RIcky Dale Gllstrap t'\r -'l 
did violate the criminal laws of the State of South Carolina (or ordlnanotl 01 \\.\..E coutH 
[] Countyl 0 Murnapalltyof Greenville ) U5_~ f'S Off\Cf 

S\\ER\f 
DESCRIPllON OF OFFENse Drugs/possession of less Iban one gram of meth or g)CBInC base, 1 st 

Having round probable CIIUl1e and \he above amant haWlg swom before rna you are empGWef8d and d .. 8CI8d to arrest the sald defendant and bnng him or 
her before rna fllflhwdh to be dealt with according to taw A COPV of \his Arrest Wanant shall be deINered to the defendanL at the bme of 1\$ _lion or 85 

&OOIl1herea1ler aa 18 pradlcable 
SWorn to and subscribed before me 

:lJ~~/~"' 
Darrell FlSber 

) 
Judge s Address 

) 
) JUclge s Telephone 

Judge Code 5068 ) IS6UII19 Court IXI Magistrate D MUIlICIpal o CirCUIt 

ORIGINAL ORJGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL 



WITNESSES 

Andrew Moates 

Greenville County Sheriffs Office 

4/5/2009 

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

M176184 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

Foreperson o/Grand Jury 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petlt Jury Date 

DOCKET NO 2009-GS-23- C .., 
GAC 

3009 

The State of South Carolina 
County of Greenville 

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

TERM 2009 

THE STATE 

va 

RICKY DALE GILSTRAP 

Indictment for 

POSSESSION OF COCAINE BASE (CRACK 
COCAINE) 

VIOLATION § 44-53-0375 

· \ 7 ,,., 

C") 

00 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 

) 
) 
) 

[NDICTMENT FOR 
POSSESSION OF COCAINE BASE (CRACK COCAINE) 

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on the Grand Jurors of GreenvIlle 

County present upon theIr oath 

That RICKY DALE GILSTRAP dld In Greenville County, on or about the 5th day of Apnl, 2009, wIllfully and 

unlawfully have In hIs posseSSIOn and under his control a quantity of Coca me Base (Crack Cocame), a controlled 

substance TblS IS m violation of §44-S3-37S of the South Carolma Code of Laws (1976) as amended 

d provIded 
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a STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

) 
) 

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

]j COUNTY OF Greenvllle 
STATE VS 

RIcky Dale GIlstrap ) 
INDICTMENT/CASE# 2009GS2304457 

NW# Ml76184 ~A~KA~------------~------~------------ ) 
------------------------------) Date of Offense _4.::../=..:51-=2.=..OO~9:....-______________ _ 

Race 
DOB 

w 
05-01 1968 

Sex M Age 41 ) 
SS# ---- ----

S C Code § 44-53 0375 (A) 

CDR Code # 3009 
Address 

--------) ---------------------------
GREENVILLE, SC 29611 

DL# - SID# 

) 
) 

---------- ) 
In dIsposItion of the said mdlctment comes now the Defendant who was 
TO Drugs/possession ofless than one ~am ofmeth or cocame base 1st 

SENTENCE SHEET 

o CONVICTED OF or 

In Vlolatton of § 44-53-0375 (A) ofthe S C Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3009 

~PLEADS 

IZI NON-VIOLENT-O VIOLENT o SERIOUS o MOST SERIOUS o Mandatory GPS=(=C=SC=----D§17-25 45 
wlmmor I st or Lewd Act} o As Indicted, o Lesser Included Offense, ~Defendant W81ves Presentment to Grand Jury i< G.- (defendant's initialS) 

Without Negotiations or Recommendatl" 0 Negotiated Sentence, ~ Recommendation by the State 

nqc;r V'-Vt,~~ '--iJ---=1 /J ..,~±tb 
Campbell eorge SC Bar# /Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar# 

WHEREFORE, the Defendant IS cOlmmted to the ~ State Department of Corrections, 0 County Detention Center, 

for a determmate tenn of 

andAlr to pay a tine of S 

3 dy!lit~/years or 0 under the Youtbful Offender Act not to exceed years 
:lCOf) prOVided that upon the servtce of I edtiislMOItrKIyears ..uor payment 

ofS 1000 . plus costs and assessments as apphcable", the balance IS suspended With probatIOn for .... 1 
~ears and subject to South Carolma Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Semces standard conditions of 
proj)4ilOn, which are Incorporated by reference 
~ CONCURRENT or 0 CONSECUTIVE to sentence on 
o The Defendant IS to be gIVen credit for time served pursuant to S C Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applIed 
by the State Department of Corrections 
o The Defendant IS to be placed on the Central RegIStry ofChtld Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S C Code §17-25-135 

Pursuant to 18 USC Section 9l1,lt IS unlawful for a person convicted ola Violation of Sec bon 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (CnmlDal 
Domestic Violence) to shlp,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammuDltlon ./ 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS ,/' 
DRESTITUTION 0 Deferred 0 DeC Waives Hearing 0 Ordered PTUP ________________________________ _ 

Total $ plus 20% fee $ days/hours Public Service Employment 
Payment Tenns Obtam GED 

o set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc Rehab or Job Corp 

May serve WIE begmmg 

*Fme __ $ __________ __ 

§ 14-1 206 (Assessments 1075 %) $ 
---~:---=---§ 14 1 211(A)(I)(Conv Surcharge) $100 $ \00 d\) 

§ 14 1 211(AX2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $ 
§ 56 5-2995 (DUr Assessment) $12 --..$-----------
§ 56 1-286 (our Breath Test) $25 $ 
§ 4712 (pubhc Def7Prob) $500 --:;:-$----------

§ 14 1-212 (Law Enforce Funding) $25 $ SPS ,po 
§ 14-1 213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $100 $ --.:.------------
§ 50-21 114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 $ 
§ 56-5 2942(1) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea ~$-----------

§ 907 (SCCIA Surcharge) $5 $ "5.[j) 
3% to County (If paid 10 mstallments) $ 

-=------------
fOTAL $ --:-----------

Substance Abuse Counseling 

Random Drug/Alcohol testmg 
Fme may be pd m equal, consecutive weekly/monthly 
pmts of $ begmnmg 

$ $W paid to PublIc Defender Fund 

Other 

,\) III PRESIDING JUDGE 
Clerk ofCourti Deputy Clerk \fo..vl- \() ~~"'-- Judge Code ~~--~___I~--__f_-I_----~~-
CourtReport~ T ,\:¢'~~ t~(~ Sentence Date 

SCCAI217 (06/20~) T' 
f f1j~"'h~1\ ~~lf'1S ~~ ~Je~ _I L. ~ 



ARREST WARRANT 

1-475916 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

lXI Countyl 0 MunICIpality of 

GreenvIlle 

Ricky Dale GIlstrap 

THE STATE 

agwnsl ~~ - 10 Lf)"7 J" 
Address 

GreenVIlle SC 29617-

Phone 
Sex: M Race W 
DL Slate ~ DL # 

SSt 
Height 6 Weight 

008 5/1/1968 Agency ORI IF SC0230000 
Prosecubng Agency Greenville County Sherrl'fs Office 
Prosecubng Oll\cer Jeffrey Max.well- 0228 
Offense ForgeI)' / Forgery, no dollar amount mvolved 

Offense Code 0488 
Code/Ordinance Sec: 16-13-00 1 0 

ThiS warrant IS CERTIFIED FOR SERVICE 10 the o County! 0 MUniCipality of 

180 

The aCCUSed 

15 to be arresled and brought before me to be 

dealt WIth according 10 the law 

SI~oIJudg. 

Date 

RETURN 

defendant 

on 

RETURN WARRANT TO 

City MagIStrate 

4 Me Gee Street Room 116 B 
GreenvIlle SC 29601 

(LS) 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROUNA 

[] County! 0 Mumclpahty of AFFIDAVIT 

Greenvllle 

Personally appeared before me the affiant Jeffrey Maxwell 

being duly swam deposes and says that defendant Rlc1cy Dale Gilstrap 

ORIGINAL 
,.onn Appf'DVCG 0)' 
s.c AUGmOy Gef'I m 
ApnI21 2003 
SCCA516 

who 

did Within this county and stale on or about 06/3012008 Violate the Criminal laws of the 

Slate of South Carollll8 (or ordlnanca of !29 County! 0 MUniCipality of 

In the follOWIng ~culars 

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE ForgCl}' J Forgery no dollar amountlQvolvcd 

Greenvllle 

I further slate thai there IS probable cause to beheve thai the defendant named abo~e did commit 
the cnme sel forth and that probable cause Is based on the foUowlng facts. 

Affiant IS an EconomiC Cnmes Investigator With the G C.S 0 The affiant has obtaIned an inCident report and documentatIOn 
Impbcatmg the defendant In t1us offense. The defendant did present check # 1005 at the Parker Road Drug Store all319 
WoodSide Ave The amount of check bemg S564 22, With a payor Palmetto State Transport and the payee bemg the defendcil1t 
The check IS counterfeit, usIng a stolen checkmg aCCOunt number of another bUSiness The S8Jd check bemg endorsed Without the 
consent. pcrnusslOn, or knowledge of the Victim The offense did occur 1Q GreenVille County 

Signature of Affiant 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROUNA ) 
) 
) 

IKJ County! 0 MUOICIpahty of 
Greenville, SC 29601-

Greenville Affianfs Telephone 

ARREST WARRANT 

TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPAUTY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY 

It appeanng from the above affidaVit that there nre reasonable grounds to beheve that 
~OA_ 

on or about 6/3012008 defendant Rlcky Dale GIlstrap '~"o/. 
did VIOlate the CIImlnal lawa of the Slate 01 South Carolina (or ordinance 01 (/l't::- ... 
[) Countyl 0 Municipality of Greenville ~ ./&( saHot)R ~ow 

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE Forgery I Forgery no dollar amount lQvolved &~ ~'Vt-: <' <' ~ '4:.'.<-. 
~.<>/.: /(/. <"Q.//" "-9 

Havmg found probable cause and tile above alfl8llt having &wom before me you are empowered and~lo ;me!ltl'le said d~Ddant and bnng him or 
her before me forthwith to be dealt with according to law A copy of thl& Arrest Warrant shall be delivered t(6lhs &e[endant at the lime of Its execullon or as 
soon therealler as is ptae1lC8ble - OR: '-', 
Swam to and subscribed before me) ~C " I 

on 07/17/2008) $' 

hz 
JudgesAddress 4 Mcgee Street, Room I 16-B 

(L s 1 ) Greenville SC 29601-
S1gnalunloll .. ulngJudgo ) Judges Telephone (864)467 5302 

James E Hudson 

Judge Code 5031 ) ISSUing Court [XJ Magistrate 0 MuniCipal 0 CirCUIt 

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL 



WITNESSES 

Jeffrey Maxwell CG-: 
1 

Greenville County Sheriffs Office 

7/18/2008=--__________ _ 

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

1475916 

C:ORfMAN GRAND JURY 

Foreperson o/Grand Jury 

VERDICT 

Foreperson 0/ Petlt Jury Dale 

DOCKET NO 200B-GS-23-
GAC 

COC163 

j The State of South Carolina 

County of Greenville 

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

March 
TERM200't 

THE STATE 

vs 

RICKY DALE GILSTRAP 

J Indictment for 
2427 

FORGERY 

VIOLATION § 16-13-0010 



'nATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GREENVlLLE 

) 
) 
) 

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on 

County present upon their oath 

INDICTMENT FOR 
FORGERY 

MAR 1 7 2009 the Grand Jurors of Greenvll1e 

That RICKY DALE GILSTRAP did 10 Greenville County on or about the 30th day of June, 2008 with mtent to 

defraud, falsely make, forge, counterfeit, cause or procure to be falsely made, forged, or counterfeited utter and 

publIsh as true, or Willfully act or asSist m any of the foregomg, 10 regard to an mstrurnent of Wrtttng, to Wit a 

check numbered 1005 m the amount of Five Hundred Sixty-Four Dollars and Twenty-Two Cents ($564 22) on the 

account of Palmetto State Transport, drawn on Bank of Amenca and presented to Parker Road Drug Store nus 

IS 10 VIOlation of § 16-13-10 of the South CarollOa Code of Laws (1976) as amended 

Agamst the peace and dlgruty of the State, and contrary to the statute m such cas made and prOVIded 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

Greenvllie ) 
-----~V~S~----------) 

~~-------------R-IC-q~D-al-e-G-II-str-a~p-------------~ 

COUNTY OF 
STATE 

AKA ____________________________ ) 

Race 
DOB 
Address 

DL# 

W Sex M ______ Age __ 4....:1 ____ ) 
05-01 1968 SS# ~ 

lJREENVILLE SC 29611 
SID# 

--------) 
) 
) 

--------) 
In dispOSItiOn of the saId mdlctment comes now the Defendant who was 
TO Forgery I Forgery no dollar amount mvolved 

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

INDICTMENT/CASE# 2008GS2308163 

AIW# 1475916 
Date of Offense _6::.:..1=-.30::.:../=.20;:...:0:.,:8'-_______ _ 
SC Code § __ 16_-_13_-0_0_1_0 _______ _ 

CDR Code # 0488 ------------------------
SENTENCE SHEET 

o CONVICTED OF or IN PLEADS 

m Vlolabon of § 16-13-0010 of the S C Code of Laws bearmg CDR Code # 0488 
~ NON-VIOLENT-O VIOLENT 0 SERIOUS OMOST SERIOUS o Mandatory GPS=(C=S=C:----O § 17-25-45 

w/mmor I st or Lewd Act) 
~ As Indtcted. OLesser Included Offense ODefendant Wwves Presentment to Grand Jury (defendant's initialS) 

DWlthout Ne otlations or Recommendatlo,)!) 0 Negotiated Sentence, ~ Recommendation by the State 

#¥tfJ1 (pf~ ~ ~~-(). 73<w6 
Campbe George SC Bar# ;oetfd&ftt Attorney ~t SC Bar# 

WHEREFORE, the Defendant IS comrmted to the ~ State Department of Corrections, 0 County Detention Center, 

for a detennmate tenn of 7 ~MEtJrllyears or 0 under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years 
andlor to pay a fine of $ , prOVIded that upon the servIce of days/months/years andlor payment 

0($ , plus costs and assessments as apphcable* the balance 15 suspended With probation for 

months/years and subject to South Carobna Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon ServIces standard condItions of 

ONCURRENT or 0 CONSECUTIVE to sentence on ~
o on, whtch are mcorporated by reference 

The Defendant IS to be given credit for bme served pursuant to S C Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and appIJed 
by the State Department of Correcttons 
o The Defendant IS to be placed on the Central RegIStry ofCblld Abuse and Neglect pursuantto S C Code §17-2S-135 

Pursuant to 18 USC Section 922,it IS unlawful for a person convicted oCa Violation oCSectlon 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Crlmmal 
DomestiC Violence) to shlp,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammuDltaon 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
ORESTITUTION 0 Defund 0 Del Waives Hearing 0 Ordered PTUP 

Total $ plus 20% fee $ days/hours PublIc ServIce Employment 
Payment Terms 
o set by SCDPPPS 

ReCIpIent 
*Fme 
§ 14 1-206 (Assessments 1075 %) 
§ 14-1 211(A)(I) (Conv Surcharge) 
§ 14-1 21 I (A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) 
§ )6 5-299S (DUI Assessment) 

§ S6 1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 
§ 47 12 (Public DeflProb) 
§ 14-1 212 (Law Enforce Fuodmg) 
§ 14-1 213 (Drug Court Surcharge) 
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) 
§ 56 S 2942(1) (Vehicle Assessment) 

§ 907 (SCCJA Surcharge) 
3%to County (If paid m Installments) 

TOTAL 

Court Reporter 
SCCAI2l7 (0612009) 

$100 
$100 
$12 
$25 

$500 
$25 

$100 

$50 
$40/ea 

$5 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

ObtamGED 
Attend Voe Rehab or Job Corp 
May serve W/E begmmg 
Substance Abuse Counselmg 

Random Drug/Alcohol testtng 
Fme may be pd m equal, consecutIve weekly/monthly 
pmts of$ begmnmg 

$ pmd to Public Defender Fund 

Other 

PRESIDING JUDGE 



.. ARREST WARRANT 

1-429790 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROUNA 

[Xl Countyl 0 MUnlClpahty of 

GreenvIlle 

THE STATE 

against 

08104242 

RIcky Dale Gilstrap 

Address 

GreenvIlle SC 29617 

Phone SSII. 
Sex- M Race W Height 6 Weight 

DL State ~ OL # 

DOB 5/111967 AgencyORltt SC0230000 
Prosecullng Agency Greenville County Shenffs Office 
Prosecubng Officer ,;..J..;.K_H~u .... gh ... , e-:,s~1~0..;.9_4~-::,:,,-:::~ ___ _ 
Offense. Forgery 1 Forgery value less than $5 000 

Offense Code 2427 
Code/Ordinance Sec. ~16-r-:l':::'3--::0:'1:6";"10;;-:(B=)(;;;2~) -------

ThiS warrant IS CERTIFIED FOR sERVicE In Ihe o Countyl 0 MUniCipality of 

The accused 

IS to be arrested and brought before me to be 

deal! With according to the law 

Slgf1ll1llro 01 Judg. 

Dale 

RETURN 

A copy of thiS arrest warranl was delIVered 10 

defendant (Z.'c..I't D 61b±rqp 
on 7-lk-o$"" 

J1 fJ(X{t{ 

tfr+~·,·P~' 
RETURN WA RANT TO 

West Greenvllle Summary Court 
6247 WhIte Horse Road 
GreenVille SC 29611 

ORIGJNAL 

~ 
ORIGINAL 

(LS) 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROUNA 

I[] Countyl 0 MUnlClpabty of 

Greenville 

) 
) 
) 

ORIGINAL 
AFFIDAVIT 

t-onnAPpro ..... Dy 
sc MOmeyGOIIefaI 
ApI1I2t 2IXn 
seCAStS 

PersonaUy '~Bre4 1 Pillq"re me !lie affiant J K Hughes who 

being duly &..!Om)~s .... Jnd says thet defe-nd-en-t-Rl-c-ky-n-a-le-G-d-stra-p----------------

did within this county and state on or about :::O.LJY~1~6~/2::::0~0~8-;=,!,"",:-:--_-:-:--:-_______ ViOlate the cnmulaJ laws ot the 
Slate of 1iR~1II crrrplln, (pr o[diSlance of 00 Countyl 0 t,\ufUClpa~ty of Greenvllle ) 
In the fdt6wlOg'}pallldullirs \ ---------------

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE Forgery 1 Forgery value less than $5 000 

1 further staIB that there 15 probable cause to behave thai the defendant named above did commll 
the come set forth and that probable cause Is based on the IoUowlIIg facts 

The defendant did knowmgly and mtentJonally attempt to utter check number 1001 at the Wal-Mart Slore at 6214 Whll.:nors.: Rd 
for the amount of $468 76 The defendant did attempt to utter thiS che<:k With the mtentlon of depnvmg the Vlcttm of said amount, 
and oblatnmg value or benefit from the forged document Tlus offense occured m GreenVille County SC 

SI9na1ure of Affiant 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROUNA 

Ii] Countyl 0 MuniCIpality of 
Mcgee Street 

reenvJlle 29601-
Greenvllle AffianfsTelephone (864)271-5210 

ARREST WARRANT 

TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPAUTY OR ANY CONSTABle OF THIS COUNTY 

It appeanng from the above affidaVIt Jt} there are reasonable grounds to beheve that 

on orebout 7/16/2008 defendant ;;.;R1:;;Cky~D_a;;;~;;;.e.;;;~;.:;;I ;;;:~;;:..:;.I-.7"~~~~.....-__________ _ 
did violate the aimmal laws of the Slate of South Carolina (or ordinance ~ c..~ J:: A , 

I[] Countyl 0 MUIllCIpairty of Greenvllie I' '(jl I ~ )~;t~ below 

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE Forgery I Forgery value less than $5 OOQ)'~;Iv' VI.!. J YC?OoB '£ D 
"~'I:IIt::: .. t: ... 

HaVing found probable cause and the above affiant haVing sworn before me you are em to arrest the said defendant and bnng him or 
her before me forthwith to be dealt With accon1lng to law A aJPY of this Allest Warrant 5haII be del ~ fendan! al the tllne of Its exewbon or as 
soon thereafter as IS pracbcable C~ 
SWom to and sUbscnbed before me ) 

on 07/161.2008 ) 
I ~ Judges Address 

~~JU; ~ O-~) » ~J~~ge-$~~~a~ap~oo-oo--------------------------------------------
VJlvm GarrISon 
Judge Code 5946 ) Issuing Court [K1 Magistrate D MunICIpal 0 CirCUit 

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL 



WITNESSES 

JHughes ~ 
Greenville County Sheriffs Office 

7/16/2008 

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

1429790 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

TRUE BILL 

Foreperson o/Grand Jury 

VERDICT 

Foreper:.on of Petit Jury Date 

DOCKET NO 2008-GS-23- 0 J J I 6 :1 
GAC 

/ 

The State of South Carolina 

County of Greenville 

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

March TERM 200ft 

THE STATE 

vs 

RICKY DALE GILSTRAP 

/ 

] Indictment for 
2427 

FORGERY 

VIOLATION § 16-13-0010 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 

) 
) 
) 

At a Court of General SessIons, convened on 

County present upon thelf oath 

INDlCTMENT FOR 
FORGERY 

MAR 172009 the Grand Jurors of GreenvIlle 

That RICKY DALE GILSTRAP dId 10 Greenville County on or about the 16th day of July, 2008 WIth mtent to 

defraud, falsely make. forge, counterfeIt, cause or procure to be falsely made, forged, or counterfeIted utter and 

pubhsh as true, or willfully act or asSiSt In any of the foregomg, m regard to an Instrument of wntmg, to Wit a 

check numbered 1001 In the amount of four Hundred SIXty-EIght Dollars and Seventy-SIx Cents ($46876) on 

the account of Budweiser of Spartanburg drawn on First Umon Bank of South Carohna and presented to Wal-

Mart This IS In VIOlation of § 16-13-10 ofthe South Carohna Code of Laws (1976) as amended 

Agamst the peace and dlgmty of the State and contrary to the statute In such case ade and prOVided 

77 



! f8 STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

U COUNTY OF Greenville 

) 
) 
) 

STATE VS 
~~ ___________ ~R~lc~kY~D~al~e_G_Jl~str~a~p_____________ ~ 
AKA _________________________________ ) 

Race 
DOB 
Address 

DL# 

Sex M Age 42 ) 
SS# -------- --------

-------) 

w 
0501 1967 

GREENVILLE, SC 29611 
) 
) 

SID# --------) 
In diSpOSItIon of the said mdlctment comes DOW the Defendant who was 
TO Forgery / Forgery value less than $5 000 

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

INDICTMENT/CASE# _2-'O'-'-0...;;,.8G...;;,.S=2:.,:;3..,:..O.o,.;81:...,:6...:..4 ___ _ 

NW# 1429790 
Date of Offense _7;,.;.1-=.16::;.'.::.20;:,.;0:.;:8'--_______ _ 

S C Code § 16-13 0010(8)(2) 

CDR Code # 2427 --------------------------
SENTENCE SHEET 

o CONVICTED OF or ~PLEADS 

In violation of § 16 13-0010(B)(2) of the S C Code of Laws, bearmg CDR Code # =-2=4=2=7,....-__ 
~ NON-VIOLENT-O VIOLENT 0 SERIOUS DMOST SERIOUS DMandatory GPS(CSC 0 § 17 25-45 

w/mmor 1st or Lewd Act) 
~ As Indicted o Lesser Included Offense, DDetendant W3Ives Presentment to Grand Jury (defendant's initialS) 

gonatlons or Recommendahon, 0 Negotiated Sentence, I!I Recommendahon by the State 

?~J' fen ant ~1(jDefendant 7:Clt:~ 
WHEREFORE, the Defendant IS comnuted to the State Department of Corrections, 0 County Detention Center, 

for a determmate term of 1 ds; rRf'i.?fil1¥lyears or 0 under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years 
and/or to pay a fine of $ , provided that upon the service of dayslmonths/years and/or payment 

of $ , plus costs and assessments as apphcable* the balance IS suspended With probation for 

months/years and subject to South Carolma Department of Probahon, Parole and Pardon ServIces standard condlhons of 
p~ro9dPn, whIch are mcorporated by reference 
0.;tCONCURRENT or 0 CONSECUTIVE to sentence on 

The Defendant IS to be given credit for hme served pursuant to S C Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and appbed 
by the State Department of Correchons 
o The Defendant IS to be placed on the Central RegiStry ofChtld Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S C Code § 1725-135 

Pursuant to 18 USC Section 912,lt IS unlawful for a person cODvicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-2~5 (CrimlDal 
Domestic Violence) to shlp,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammUDJtlon 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
DRESTITUTION 0 Deterred 0 Det. Waives Hearing 0 Ordered PTUP 
Total $ plus 20% fee $ 
Payment Terms 
o set by SCDPPPS 

ReCIpient-
*Fme __ $ __________ __ 

§ 14 1 206 (Assessments 1075 %) $ -------------§ 14-1 211(A)(I)(Conv Surcharge) $100 $ 'CO n 
§ 14-1 211(A)(2) (OUI Surcharge) $100 $ 
§ 5652995 (DUI Assessment) $12 ---..$r-----------
§ 56-1 286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 $ 
§ 47 12 (Pubbc DeflProb) $500 --;;:$,-------
§ 14-1 212 (Law Enforce Fundmg) $25 $ ;1'$ ~ 
§ 14-1 213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $100 --=$ __________ _ 

§ 50211l4(BUIBreathTestFee) $50 $ 
§ ;)6 5 2942(1) (VehIcle Assessment) $40/ea ----::::$----------

§ 90 7 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ 5,," 
3% to County (lfpaJd m lDStallments) $ -----------
TOTAL $ -------------
Clerk ofCourtl Deputy Clerk Reb .. \ ~ ltJ:-J.o.~~ 
Court Reporter S"MViSA" r-~ ~~atOwv.o 
SCCM17 (0612009) 0"' I 

____ days/hours Public Service Employment 

ObtamGED 
Attend Voc Rehab or Job Corp 
May serve W IE begmmg 
Substance Abuse Counseltng 

Random Drug/Alcohol testmg 
FlOe may be pd m equal, consecutlve weekly/monthly 
pmts of $ begmnmg 

$ paJd to PublIc Defender Fund 

Other 

PRESIDING JUDGE 
Judge Code 
Sentence Date 


